SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 19, 2012
9:05 a. m

9: 05: 03 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stednman called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice-Chair
Senat or Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny d son

Senat or Joe Thonmas

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Senat or Thonmas WAgoner; Senator Cathy G essel;

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Maynard Tapp, Sel f, Anchor age; Brad Lipsconb, Sel f,
Anchorage; Keith Silver, Self, Anchorage; Ben Packa, Self,
Wasilla; Carl Portman, Self, Anchorage; Beau OCbrigewtch,
Self, Eagle River; Tim Coe, CH2MH Il, Anchorage; G nger
Kane, Pr oj ect Engi neer, CH2IVHI | |, Anchor age; Dave
Hopki nson, Vice President of Constructi on, CH2IVHI | |,
Anchorage; Jim Plaquet, Self, Fairbanks; Barbara Gazaway,
Sel f, Anchorage; Hal Gazaway, Self, Anchorage; Javen GCse,
Self, Anchorage; James Garhart, Self, Matsu; Tom Ml oney,
Al aska Area Manager, CH2MH|II, Anchorage; Kati Capozzi,
Sel f, Anchorage; Jeff Lentfer, Self, Anchorage; Wnston
Bur bank, Self, Anchorage; Renee Schofield, Self, Ketchikan;
Joe Beedl e, Pr esi dent, Al aska Banker s Associ ati on,
Anchorage; David Sterin, Self, Anchorage; Ken Hall, Self,
Fai rbanks; Tara Sweeney, Senior Vice President, Arctic



Sl ope Regional Corporation, Anchorage; Rod MCoy, Self,
Anchorage; Charles Norton, Self, Anchorage; Jim Udel hoven
Sel f, Kasi | of ; Mary  Nanuwor k, Self, Anchorage; Cat hy
Duxbury, Anchorage, Self; Buzz Qis, Self, North Pole;
Caroline Bolar, Self, Anchorage;

SUMVARY
SB 192 O L AND GAS PRODUCTI ON TAX RATES

SB 192 was HEARD and HELD in conmttee for
further consideration.

#sb192
SENATE BI LL NO. 192

"An Act relating to the oil and gas production tax;
and providing for an effective date."

9:06: 12 AM

Co-Chair Stedman noted that public testinony would be
l[imted to two mnutes per testifier and should address SB
192 in a succinct manner.

9:08: 00 AM

MAYNARD  TAPP, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified against ACES. He did not think it was fair to
take billions of dollars from the oil producers and
observed that <constitution required the devel opnent of
Al aska's resources. He urged that the problem facing the
state was not short-term gains, but long-term fiscal
heal t h.

9: 09: 30 AM

BRAD LI PSCOVB, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
expressed the need for new oil production and related a
story from his youth about jobs that were created by the
oil industry in Anchorage. He shared that he had a degree
in global logistics managenent and that it had been
challenging to find enploynent with the oil industry in
Al aska. The lack of new oil production nmade him fear for
the future of Alaska's job force. Wthout new oi

production in the state, he would be forced to seek
enpl oynent in places like North Dakota. He concluded that

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 03/19/12 9:05 A M



the state could not have the highest oil taxes in North
America and still expect to attract new capital.

9:12: 05 AM

KEI TH S| LVER, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified against SB 192 and in support of HB 110. He
stated that the bill did not make neani ngful changes in the
progressivity fornmula. He related that the governnent take
remai ned too high under the new CS for SB 192 and was
worried that it would discourage investnent; the oi

industry would sinply invest in other places that offered a
better return. He urged that the current tax structure was
designed to nake the state conpetitive when oil was at $60
to $80 per barrel and warned that ACES needed to be fixed.

9:14: 25 AM

BEN PACKA, SELF, WASILLA (via teleconference), testified
agai nst SB 192 and discussed the chall enges of entering the
job market in Alaska; it had been hard to find enploynent
as an engineer. The current and proposed oil tax policies
made hi m concerned for the state's financial health.

9:15:52 AM

CARL  PORTMAN, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),

testified against SB 192 and wurged the passage of
legislation that would result in neaningful reform to
Al aska's oil tax regine. He defined neaningful reform as a
significant change that would inprove Alaska' s globa

position in attracting the investnent needed to stem
decline and increase long-term production. He shared that
he was willing to accept short-term losses for long-term
gains and hoped that the conmmttee would listen to the
i nvestors.

9:17:25 AM

BEAU OBRI GEW TCH, SELF, EAGLE RIVER (via teleconference)

testified against SB 192 and wanted neani ngful tax reform
He noted that the paid consultants Pedro Van Meurs and
Gerald Kepes had both recomrended tax reductions and was
concerned that public did not fully understand the positive
inpact that the oil industry had on the state. He spoke
about the growi ng operating budget and pointed out that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 03/19/12 9:05 A M



oil industry funded upwards of 90 percent of the state's
budget .

9:19:53 AM

TIM COE, CH2MHI LL, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), voiced
his opposition of SB 192 in its current form and urged the
conmmttee to amend the bill. He shared concern that Al aska
relied so heavily on oil for its revenue, but that the
state's oil production continued to decline. He urged the
need to make Alaska conpetitive in attracting new
investnments and reverse the declining oil flow He stated
that Al aska needed to increase production for our future,
even if it sacrificed short-termfiscal gains.

9:21: 04 AM

G NCER KANE, PRQIECT ENG NEER, CH2MHI LL, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), expressed opposition to SB 192 and rel ated
a personal story about her famlies' connection with the
oil industry. She pointed out that it was becomng nore
difficult to find work in Alaska. The lack of new North
Sl ope production related projects was her main concern; in
5 years with CH2WVHI || she had worked on a nunber of oil
rel ated projects, but none of them included a new pipeline
or a new production project.

9:22: 54 AM

DAVE HOPKI NSON, VI CE PRESI DENT OF CONSTRUCTI ON, CH2IVHI LL,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke against SB 192 and
shared that he had been working in the oil industry in
Al aska since 1974. During that tinme, he had worked on a
vast majority of the major North Slope projects and noted
that the current outlook for new construction work in
fabrication and field installation was the |owest he had
seen in Alaska. A year ago CH2MH || had over 500 people
working on new oil field projects in Al aska, but today they
had no personnel working on new oil projects; furthernore,
there were no new oil project developnments in Alaska to
deploy their long-term enployees to. CH2MH Il was being
forced to redeploy personnel outside of Alaska in order to
keep them enployed. He concluded that increased drilling
woul d be beneficial to production.

9:25:34 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 03/19/12 9:05 A M



JIM  PLAQUET, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference),
testified against SB 192 and stated that it did not
encourage new production. He agreed with Governor Parnell
that the legislature needed to address production taxes in
order to spur investnent. He said that today's high oil
prices should be leading to new investnent, but that
i nvestnment was not occurring because ACES did not
incentivize new investnment when the price of oil was high
He was worried that the government take remamined too high
under the new CS for SB 192 and that it would deter
i nvest nment .

9:28: 09 AM

BARBARA GAZAWAY, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
expressed her support of amending SB 192 and stated that
ACES was not performng as it should. She wurged the
committee to spend as nuch tine as was necessary on SB 192
to nmake well infornmed, reasonable changes that were fair to
both the state and i ndustry.

9:30: 10 AM

HAL GAZAVAY, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 192 and offered that it nore
t han adequately addressed the criticism of progressivity in
ACES at higher oil prices. He stated that other criticisnms
were false or fabricated by oil producers. He said that
under ELF, the rate of oil production decline had continued
and pointed out that even under the proposed HB 110 the oil
conpanies would not agree to stop the rate of production
decline; furthernore, decline was a natural phenonenon in
oil fields and was a result of the lack in devel opnent.

9:33:11 AM

JAVEN OSE, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified
against SB 192 and stated that ACES was working. He
remar ked t hat Al aska shoul d exercise its sovereignty.

9:34:11 AM

JAMES GARHART, SELF, MATSU (via tel econference), expressed
his support for rebates to oil producers and that the
rebates could be a percentage that was dependent on the
producers reaching a certain | evel of production.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 03/19/12 9:05 A M



9: 36: 55 AM

TOM MALONEY, ALASKA AREA MANAGER, CH2IVHI LL, ANCHORAGE (vi a
tel econference), testified for the passage of |[|egislation
t hat encouraged new production and stated that in the past,
DOR had been frequently over estimating inconme and under
estimating expenses. He indicated that in Al aska's current
investnment climate the investors took nearly all the risk
and downside, while the state took alnost all the upside.
He urged the need for nore oil production.

9:40: 02 AM

KATI CAPQZZI SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
expressed opposition of SB 192 and stated that it did not
make the neaningful changes that the state needed. She
pointed out that the evidence showed that SB 192 was not
t he answer.

9:41: 20 AM

JEFF LENTFER, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified against SB 192 as it was witten and stated that
ot her business owners were concerned that it did not
achieve the type of tax reforns necessary to stinmulate
investment. He observed that the film tax credit had been
effective in increasing film activities in Al aska and
t hought the sanme concept also applied to oil production. He
was in favor of amending SB 192 to increase devel opnent or
"better yet" supported HB 110.

9:43: 35 AM

W NSTON BURBANK, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
urged the need to incentivize oil corporations to increase
production. He stated that an oil conpany's main objective
was to gain profit for its sharehol ders; conpani es
eval uated the economics on a global Ilevel and Al aska was
| ess conpetitive when conpared ot her areas.

9:45: 45 AM

RENEE SCHOFI ELD, SELF, KETCH KAN (via teleconference),
testified against SB 192 and related the need to encourage
new devel opnment and maintain oil revenue. She pointed out
that oil revenue enabled many of the essential services
that she and her famly enjoyed in Ketchikan.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 03/19/12 9:05 A M



9:46: 58 AM

JCE  BEEDLE, PRESI DENT, ALASKA  BANKERS  ASSCCI ATI ON,
ANCHORAGE (via tel econference), urged support of anmendnents

to SB 192 that would notivate oil producers increase
investnment. He stated that normally, he was an optim st
about Alaska's business and growh potential. He was

cautious about the future of Alaska' s sustained economc
growh and warned that SB 192 needed anendnents to
incentivize oil production. He stressed the inportance of
the oil industry to Alaska's econony and hoped the
| egislature would prioritize the long-term health of
Al aska.

9:50:10 AM

DAVID STERIN, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
expressed his opposition of SB 192 and offered that the
state was only in harvest node because l|legislation |ike SB
192 and ACES forced the oil producers to grab all the oil
while they could. He said that nmenbers of the Al aska
Legi slature had asserted that there was nothing the state
could do to stem decline; however, he pointed out that
Texas had slowed, reversed, and had plateaued their
production curve. He discussed all the governnent services
that were enabled by oil noney and warned that the oil
i ndustry enpl oyed one third of state.

9:52:43 AM

KEN HALL, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), testified
against SB 192 and urged that the state needed neani ngful
| egislation that would capitalize on the industry. He felt
t hat SB 192 fell short in increasing exploration,
devel opment, and production of oil. He warned that real
changes need to be nmade, but did not want to sacrifice
short-terminvestnment for long-termgains for the state.

9:55:10 AM

TARA SWVEENEY, SENI OR VI CE PRESI DENT, ARCTI C SLOPE REG ONAL
CORPORATI ON, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), expressed her
opposition of SB 192 and shared the inportance of the
Arctic Slope Regional Corporation's partnership with the
oil and gas industry. She pointed out that the bill did not
go far enough to stimulate new investnment. She urged the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 03/19/12 9:05 A M



need for training and enploynent opportunities for all
Al askans and stated that HB 110 was the only bill that had
the i ndustry's support.

9:58: 51 AM
AT EASE

10: 05: 39 AM
RECONVENED

10: 06: 20 AM

ROD MCCOY, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), expressed
his support of SB 192 and said that he did not support HB
110. He stated that our taxes were right in the mddl e when
conpared to other reginmes and warned that the political
climate in Alaska was heavily controlled by high noney
i nterests.

10: 09: 19 AM

CHARLES NORTOQN, SELF, ANCHORACGE (via teleconference),
voiced his support of SB 192 and offered that HB 110 gave
away too much noney to the oil corporations.

10: 10: 05 AM
AT EASE

10: 23: 14 AM
RECONVENED

10: 23: 42 AM

JIM  UDELHOVEN, SELF, KASI LOF (via t el econference),
testified in opposition of SB 192 and shared his belief
that the |egislation would not create jobs. He supported HB
110 and thought that it would stinmulate new devel opnent and
would result in nore jobs. He observed that this was a very
i nportant decision for Alaska's future.

10: 25: 14 AM

MARY NANUWCRK, SELF, ANCHORACGE (via tel econference), voiced
his opposition to SB 192 and pointed out that |awrakers
spent too nuch time trying to solve oil related problens
that were not getting solved. She shared that in the past
the state had not worked well with native peoples and urged

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 03/19/12 9:05 A M



| awmakers to do a better job with that aspect. She noted
that native peoples were in touch with the land and were
nore aware of problens on the North Slope; she hoped they
woul d be consulted nore in the future.

10: 29: 44 AM

CATHY  DUXBURY, ANCHORAGE, SELF (via teleconference),
testified in opposition of SB 192 and urged the passage of
HB 110. She thought that supporting the producers would
encourage long-term growh for Alaska and nentioned the
need for nore jobs in the state.

10: 31: 30 AM
AT EASE

10: 48: 05 AM
RECONVENED

10: 48: 14 AM

Co-Chair Stedman rem nded the public that testinmony would
resunme in the afternoon neeting.

10: 48: 36 AM

BUzZZ OTlS, SELF, NORTH POLE (via tel econference), testified
in opposition of SB 192 and stated that Alaska was at a
crossroads; the interior of the state was suffering from a
| oss of jobs, high electrical costs, and high fuel costs.
He said that Alaska was a resource state and stressed the
need for tax legislation that encouraged devel opnent in an
environmentally friendly way. He suggested that any new
| egi sl ati on shoul d encourage nore production.

10: 51: 03 AM

CAROLI NE BOLAR, SELF, ANCHORACGE (via teleconference),
expressed her support of maintaining ACES and pointed out
that the state needed assurances from the oil and m ning
i ndustries that they would produce. She noted that many
Al askans did not understand that oil was a resource that
belonged to the whole state and wurged that the oil
conpani es did not own the resource.

10: 54: 33 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 03/19/12 9:05 A M



SB 192 was HEARD and
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT
10: 54: 42 AM

HELD

in

committee for further

The neeting was adjourned at 10:54 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee

10

03/19/12 9:05 A M



